Board of Directors’ Reports
Ray Yuenger, D21 Secretary
October 2025
Contact Ray: rayyuenger@gmail.com

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board
of Directors of District 21 on September 16, 2025

This meeting summary is going to look a little different than what most newsletter
readers are accustomed to. Ordinarily, for the D21 Diamond in the Ruff newsletter,
| prepare a less formal summary of the minutes of D21 Board meetings (for
example, not including the roll call) and later circulate a draft of the formal
minutes to D21 Board members for approval at our next Board meeting. However,
| won’t have time this month to prepare two documents due to travel plans, so the
following is a draft of the formal minutes that will eventually be found on the D21
website after Board approval.

1. Call to order. President Jim Coke called the virtual meeting to order at 6:35 PM.

2. Roll call. Secretary Ray Yuenger called the roll. In attendance were the following directors (and
alternates) from their Units: 473, Donna Neff; 497, Mark Kornmann; 498, Lauren Rosen; 499, Anne
Hollingsworth, Jackie Zayac; 500, Andy Sass; 501, Art Mirin, Don Garka; 502, Grant Vance; 503, Max
Schireson; 505, Jim Coke, Katherine Ewing; 506, Tom Stillman, Gail Gabiati; 507, Lynn Bartz, Ray
Yuenger; 509, Jackie Ortiz; 512, Sigrid Price, Helen Bohl; 522, Anthony Toto, Laura Da Costa; 524, James
Craig; and 550, Janet Tainty. Also in attendance were Anne Wilson, Brenda Hatton, Vice-President Stu
Goodgold, and Jeffrey Hack.

3. Minutes. The minutes of the regular Board meeting on June 17, 2025, were approved as circulated.

4. Reports of Officers and Committee Chairs. To expedite the meeting, the following written reports
were circulated to the Board in advance of the meeting: the President’s report by Jim Coke, a report by
Sectional Tournament Coordinator Anne Hollingsworth, a report about the 2025 San Francisco NABC by
Anne Hollingsworth, the latest Financial report by Treasurer Lynn Bartz, the Tournament Chair report by
Anne Wilson and Brenda Hatton, an Election Committee report by Jackie Ortiz, the Communication
Committee report by Laura Da Costa, the NAP report by Jim Coke, and the schedule for the 2026 GNT
events by Grant Vance. (It would unduly prolong these minutes to summarize all these documents.)

Regional Director Jackie Zayac reported orally that a written report of the National Board meetings had
been circulated to all Unit Presidents and described in the last D21 newsletter. Jackie asked Board
members to inform their Units that 299ers who play on Wednesday morning of the Nationals are invited
to her room for lunch and there will be prizes and a free play for another game.

There were questions for the Elections Committee. Ray and Jackie Ortiz explained that the Units in each
area had just been notified about who are the candidates in their areas for the three positions per area of
Area Director. They weren't notified about who are the nominees in other areas. Ray listed the five
candidates nominated for East area, namely Jackie Zayac, Anne Hollingsworth, Nancy Boyd, Art Mirin,
and Rob Johnson. Jackie said we’d sent out a list of all candidates to those interested. There are three
areas with three candidates.

Max Schireson reported orally for the Growth Committee that $4,800 was granted to 24 youths from
Silicon Valley Youth Bridge and the Center for Bridge Education to attend the Summer YNABCs. Gail
Gabiati reported that the Goodwill Committee has solicited nominations from Units for Goodwill awards.
Jim said that he would be making some Presidential Goodwill awards.

5. Moving to new business, four written motions had been distributed in advance of the meeting.

October 2025 Page 1 of 5



The first motion by the Treasurer Lynn Bartz was a: “Motion to REMOVE Sigrid Price and Anne
Hollingsworth as persons authorized to act and sign on behalf of District 21 ACBL for Bank of America
account 001139005478 and ADD James S. Coke and Stuart R. Goodgold as persons authorized to act
and sign on behalf of District 21 ACBL for Bank of America account 001139005478.” The motion was

seconded.

The Treasurer explained that the Bank of America requires that the account signatories on behalf of D21
be authorized in board minutes. Members discussed similar experiences on other boards with the Bank of
America and other banks. The Treasurer expressed frustration with the Bank of America. There was
sentiment allowing the Treasurer to change banks, which she said she would prefer. Stu pointed out that if
we approve the motion, the Treasurer can still change banks in the future. Andy Sass and Ray agreed.
Sigrid wondered if she had to go to the bank to deauthorize her signature. The Treasurer said she’d find
out. Sigrid suggested approving the motion now and then investigating closing the Bank of America
account later.

It was also discussed what would be required of the Board if the District opened a new bank account.

Art suggested approving the motion now and letting the Treasurer investigate new bank accounts later,
rather than making a conditional motion allowing a bank change.

**MOTION PASSED. The motion passed as written without opposition.

In terms of authorizing Lynn to open a new account, the matter was deferred for further investigation and
possibly approval by the Executive Committee.

The second motion by the Treasurer was a revision of what had been circulated to the Board. It stated: |
move that the Board of District 21 authorize Andy Wasserman to continue managing District 21’s cash
reserves, prioritizing capital preservation and steady income generation while minimizing exposure to
stock market volatility. Authorized investment vehicles include Certificates of Deposit, U.S. Treasury Notes,
and similar risk-averse investments. The authorized investment strategy follows a laddered approach,
where assets mature at different intervals across a range of term lengths.” The motion was seconded.

The Treasurer explained that the motion was made at the request of Andy Wasserman, who has been
managing D21’s cash reserves for years and would like to see some written authorization for his role.
There was no further discussion.

**MOTION PASSED. The motion was passed as written without opposition.

The third motion was by Jackie Ortiz and was: “that President Jim Coke, Vice-President Stu Goodgold,
and Secretary Ray Yuenger each be provided three nights at the host hotel during the NABC in San
Francisco between November 27 and December 7, 2025. The other two members of the Executive
Committee, Treasurer Lynn Bartz and Executive Committee Officer Anne Hollingsworth, already have
rooms by virtue of being on the NABC Committee.”

Jackie O. invited amendments to her motion. Gail noted that the people getting rooms are presumably
working at the NABC and she asked if that was true for the three named officers. Jackie O. said it was
partly honorary, but she assumed they would be working. She explained that it wasn’t done for other
NABCS and hasn’t been done for local NABCS except for the President. Jackie O. said it was partly due
to their work on the new Bylaws and resulting changes. It would also be good to have the Executive
Committee present at the NABC in case any problems arise.

Lynn Bartz asked what the cost would be and whether this item would come out of the D21 budget or the
NABC budget. Anne H. explained that the NABC money is specifically used for the NABC and any left
over is held for the next NABC. Anne H. couldn’t say at the moment whether there is spare money but her
opinion is that any should go to hospitality.

The estimated cost was $2,000. Lynn said it could come from the volunteer appreciation budget and it is
not currently budgeted. It should be quantified.

October 2025 Page 2 of 5



Gail’s gut feeling is that volunteers shouldn’t be compensated. Anne H. mentioned there are some free
plays given out. Katherine asked if Jim as President doesn’t have something to do every day at the NABC,
so he should receive more days. Sigrid said the money shouldn’t come from the NABC budget. She asked if
D21 didn’t have spare money for this kind of thing. Lynn said not for this kind of cost, though there are
extra funds set aside for some other costs.

Jackie Zayac explained that for the SF NABCs, Anne H. is the Chair. Volunteer chairs who work with the
ACBL staff directly have plenty to do during the NABC and Anne H. is taking care of them. Sigrid is
coordinating a lot of other volunteers who aren’t getting rooms. The three officers haven’t signed up for
any volunteer duties. Jackie Z. asked if they’d like to help out with registration and prizes. Jackie O. said
she could use all their help.

Max appreciated the sentiment of showing appreciation to officers, but he wondered if it was appropriate
to do so in a way that invites comparison to how other volunteers are being treated by D21.

Ray said he wouldn’t comment on the merits of the motion but it was related to the broader topic of a D21
volunteer appreciation policy which has been in the planning stages without a policy presented for at least
half a year.

Anthony said it’s a nice sentiment, but we have a volunteer board and $2,000 could be spent on education
or recruitment or helping struggling tournaments.

Jackie O. said until the last eight years, the D21 President has always been given a budget to attend
events around the district. Ray added that the District President used to be given a room at regionals, but
the practice ended before he was D21 President. Jackie O. said we had done so for 25 years. Jim added
that he has received free rooms at some regionals for varying amounts of time. In response to Stu’s
question, Jim said he received no allotment for visiting units. Lynn said such funds could be added to future
budgets. Lynn pointed out that how much work volunteers like her do that does not occur at tournaments
and is not always visible to Board members.

Sigrid said we don’t have a volunteer appreciation policy because she was going to draft one, but she is
opposed to quid pro quo, to promising volunteers rewards for volunteering. Sigrid told the tournament
planning chairs to do what they thought was right for regional volunteers. Jim agreed with Sigrid. D21
should be making business decisions if a particular volunteer is doing necessary work and should not have
a fixed policy about which volunteering justifies which rewards.

After the preliminary discussion, Andy asked if the motion was seconded. Anne H. pointed out that there
was some money budgeted for volunteer appreciation before. Lynn pointed out that benefits with a value
over $600 become taxable and must be reported unless there was a business purpose for the person’s
activity.

Jackie O. pointed out that the District used to pay for dinners for the Executive Committee the night before
Board meetings where the agenda was discussed. Lynn said this could be included in the budget.

Max noted that eliminating perks is consistent with the general trend for non-profit boards. Also, it is
awkward to have these discussions in front of the officers who would benefit from the motion. Jim said he
had no skin in the discussion.

James Craig asked to call the question if there was a second. Katherine seconded it. Jim, Ray, and Stu as
potential beneficiaries abstained from the vote.

**MOTION FAILED. The Secretary counted three votes in favor, 13 opposed and three abstentions.

The fourth motion by Ray of the Election Committee was to add the sentence in red to clause IV of the
District’s Policy on Elections.

“The Election Committee will count the votes for each area and announce the new directors for each area
by December 31. The three Area Directors will be the candidates with the three highest vote totals in the
areaq, unless all three candidates are from the same Unit, in which case the third Area Director will be the

October 2025 Page 3 of 5



candidate with the highest vote total from a different Unit, unless there was no such candidate. When the
number of open director positions in an area equals or exceeds the number of eligible candidates, the
candidates will be deemed elected by acclamation without requiring the Election Committee to collect and
count votes from the Units in that area.”

(The motion also quoted the preceding and following paragraphs of clause IV.) Ray explained that the
motion displayed on the screen varied from what had been circulated to the Board to improve the
wording. Also, while the Bylaws Committee had contemplated and specified many aspects of the new
elections process, it did not create a procedure for when there are no more nominees than available
positions in an area.

Ray said there was a disagreement on the Election Committee about the consequences of our current
situation, where in three of the District’s five areas, there are exactly three nominees for the three
available positions. The question is whether the Election Committee needs to conduct an election under
these circumstances and obtain the votes of each Unit in the area. Ray hoped for guidance from the Board
saying that votes wouldn’t need to be solicited by the Election Committee under these circumstances.

The motion was seconded.

Max asked if those who would be elected by the passage of this motion should abstain from the vote. As
parliamentarian, Ray said it was a good suggestion, similar fo the vote on the motion to provide NABC
rooms for three officers.

**MOTION PASSED. The motion passed as written without opposition.

Jim pointed out that a number of board members were unable to vote because they are facing no
opposition to become Area Directors.

Anthony and Jackie Z. asked who was just elected. Ray said that in the West area, Max Schireson, Dana
Shelley, and Kit Morse were elected. In the South areaq, it was Lynn Bartz, Stu Goodgold, and Anthony
Toto. In the Northwest areaq, it was Gail Gabiati, Jackie Ortiz, and Sigrid Price.

Ray and Jackie O. thanked the Board for passing the motion and simplifying the work for the Election
Committee.

The final agenda item of new business was the formation of a website committee. Ray as a member of
the Communication Committee explained that this Committee was ostensibly in charge of the website.
Melanie Haddad was knowledgeable about the topic, but she is no longer on the Committee and the
remaining members have no expertise in the area, so the hope is to form a new committee. Jim asked for a
motion.

Sigrid suggested we speak with our webmaster about his ideas. Ray said the webmaster is invited to
every Board meeting. Anne H. said her unit looked at a lot of options in improving their website.

Ray said it wasn’t a motion because he wanted to see what interest there is. Anne Wilson asked if the
person needed to be a Board member to be on the committee. The President said no. Anne W. said she’d
be happy to help. Laura Da Costa said she doesn’t have the time to head up a new committee. She is busy
with the newsletter.

Jim wonders if we need a committee or a coordinator. He'd prefer a committee. Ray said he’d be willing
to serve. Anne W. suggested emulating D22. Jim said he’d contact them. Anthony said he’d just emailed
them. Jim said he hoped we’d be able to report back at the next meeting.

For additional new business, Andy Sass asked if we couldn’t essentially recreate the Western Conference
and organize STaC games with other Districts. Stu pointed out that the Western Conference dissolved
completely last year. Jim said he’d speak with D22 about it and also pursue it at a quarterly President’s
meeting. Jackie Z recommended that Jim talk to D19 specifically. Districts 22 and 17 want to be on their
own and 20 is with 18.

October 2025 Page 4 of 5



ND IN THE RUTFTF

Anthony thanked everyone who contributed to having a Richard Meffley day at the NABC. Anne H.
thanked Antony for organizing it.

Lynn clarified that the next Board meeting on November 18 will be the budget meeting.

The meeting was adjourned after 82 minutes.

October 2025 Page 5 of 5



